AGENDA

STAYTON CITY COUNCIL
Monday, December 2, 2024

Stayton Community Center
400 W. Virginia Street
Stayton, Oregon 97383

HYBRID MEETING

The Stayton City Council will be holding a hybrid meeting utilizing Zoom video conferencing software.
The meeting will be in-person but can also be live streamed on the City of Stayton’s YouTube account.
Please use the following option to view the meeting:

City Council Regular Session — https://youtube.com/live/7CbTDLDwoml

Public Comment and Public Hearing Testimony: Meetings allow for in-person, virtual, or written public
comment. If a community member has a barrier which prevents them from participating via one of the
methods below, they should contact City staff at citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov no less than
three hours prior to the meeting start time to make arrangements to participate.

Comments and testimony are limited to three minutes. All parties interested in providing public
comment or testifying as part of a public hearing shall participate using one of the following methods:

e In-Person Comment: Parties interested in providing in-person verbal public comment shall fill
out a “Request for Recognition” form available at the meeting. Forms must be filled out and
submitted to the Assistant City Manager or designee prior to the meeting start time.

e Video or Audio Conference Call: Parties interested in providing virtual public comment shall
contact City staff at citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov at least three hours prior to the
meeting start time with their request. Staff will collect their contact information and provide
them with information on how to access the meeting to provide comments.

o Written Comment: Written comment submitted to citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov at
least three hours prior to the meeting start time will be provided to the public body in advance
of the meeting and added to the City Council’'s webpage where agenda packets are posted.

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. FLAG SALUTE

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS
a. Additions to the agenda
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Stayton City Council Agenda Page 1 of 3
October 21, 2024
The City of Stayton is an Equal Opportunity Institution


https://youtube.com/live/7CbTDLDwomI
mailto:citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov
mailto:citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov
mailto:citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov

5. CONSENT AGENDA
a. November 18, 2024 City Council Work Session Minutes
b. November 18, 2024 City Council Regular Session Minutes

6. PRESENTATIONS

7. PUBLIC HEARING

8. GENERAL BUSINESS
a. Ordinance No. 1070, Adopting Biennial Budgets

1.

2.
3.
4

Staff Report —James Brand
Public Comment

Council Discussion

Council Decision

b. Ordinance No. 1071, Updating SMC3.04 to Raise Small Procurement
Threshold to $25k

1.

2.
3.
4

Staff Report — James Brand
Public Comment

Council Discussion

Council Decision

9. COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF

10. COMMUNICATION FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL

11. ADJOURN

ACTION

ACTION

The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or other

accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special

accommodations, contact City Hall at (503) 769-3425.

Stayton City Council Agenda
October 21, 2024

The City of Stayton is an Equal Opportunity Institution

Page 2 of 3



CALENDAR OF EVENTS

DECEMBER 2024
Tuesday December 3  Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices
Monday December 16  City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtube.com/live/9pOSKMkR7vc
Wednesday December 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. Stayton Public Library
Tuesday December 24
CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY
Wednesday December 25
Monday December 30  Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center
JANUARY 2025
Wednesday January 1 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF NEW YEARS DAY HOLIDAY
Monday January 6 City Council 7:00 p.m.
Tuesday January 7 Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices
Wednesday January 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. Stayton Public Library
Thursday January 16 Public Arts Commission 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices
Monday January 20 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. HOLIDAY
Tuesday January 21 City Council 7:00 p.m.
Monday January 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center
FEBRUARY 2025
Monday February 3 City Council 7:00 p.m.
Tuesday February 4 Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices
Monday February 17  CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS’ DAY HOLIDAY
Tuesday February 18  City Council 7:00 p.m.
Wednesday February 19  Library Board 6:00 p.m. Stayton Public Library
Thursday February 20  Public Arts Commission 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices
Monday February 24  Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center
MARCH 2025
Monday March 3 City Council 7:00 p.m.
Tuesday March 4 Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices
Monday March 17 City Council 7:00 p.m.
Wednesday March 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. Stayton Public Library
Thursday March 20 Public Arts Commission 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices
Monday March 31 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center
APRIL 2025
Tuesday April 1 Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices
Monday April 7 City Council 7:00 p.m.
Wednesday April 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. Stayton Public Library
Thursday April 17 Public Arts Commission 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices
Monday April 21 City Council 7:00 p.m.
Monday April 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center

Stayton City Council Agenda Page 3 of 3
October 21, 2024

The City of Stayton is an Equal Opportunity Institution


https://youtube.com/live/9pOSKMkR7vc

Stayton City Council
Work Session
November 18, 2024

LOCATION: STAYTON PUBLIC LIBRARY, 515 N. FIRST AVENUE, STAYTON

Time Start: 6:03 P.M.

Time End: 6:58 P.M.

Council President, Steve Sims
Councilor David Giglio
Councilor Ben McDonald
Councilor Jordan Ohrt
Councilor David Patty

AGENDA
Mayoral vacancy discussion

Switch to biennial budgets

MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG

STAYTON STAFF
Julia Hajduk, City Manager
Alissa Angelo, Assistant City Manager
James Brand, Finance Director
Gwen Johns, Police Chief
Janna Moser, Library Director
Jennifer Siciliano, Community & Economic Development
(excused)
Melanie Raba, Administrative Special Projects

ACTIONS

Ms. Hajduk reviewed the process for filling the Mayoral
vacancy.

Mr. Brand discussed transitioning to a biennial budget.
Council asked questions regarding what budget adjustments
are permitted between budget years. Staff responded.

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 2P DAY OF DECEMBER 2024, BY A VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY

COUNCIL.

Date:

Date:

Steve Sims, Council President

Julia Hajduk, City Manager

Stayton City Council Work Session Minutes

November 18, 2024

Page 1 of 1




City of Stayton
City Council Minutes
November 18, 2024

LOCATION: STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA, STAYTON

Time Start: 7:10 P.M.

Time End: 8:58 P.M.

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG

COUNCIL
Council President Stephen Sims
Councilor David Giglio
Councilor Ben McDonald
Councilor Jordan Ohrt
Councilor David Patty

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

Announcements
a. Additions to the agenda

b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest,
Bias, etc.

Public Comment

Consent Agenda

a. November 4, 2024 City Council Regular Session
Minutes

b. Resolution No. 1120, Authorizing the City of Stayton
to Submit the Stayton Total Maximum Daily Load
(TMDL) Report Matrix to the Oregon Department of
Environmental Quality (DEQ)

c. Resolution No. 1121, Awarding Contract for the
Stayton Safety Action Plan

Presentations

Public Hearing

General Business

Resolution No. 1122, Establishing a Comprehensive
Street Improvement Funding Strategy and Amending the
Fee Schedule to Increase the Street Fee

a. Staff Report —Julia Hajduk

b. Public Comment

STAYTON STAFF
Julia Hajduk, City Manager
Alissa Angelo, Assistant City Manager
Gwen Johns, Police Chief
Janna Moser, Library Director
James Brand, Finance Director

Jennifer Siciliano, Community & Economic Development
Director

Melanie Raba, Administrative Special Projects
Ross Williamson, City Attorney

ACTIONS

None.

None.

James Loftus, Stayton spoke regarding his interaction with

the Police department.

Motion from Councilor Patty, seconded by Councilor Sims,
to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.

Sims, Giglio, McDonald, Ohrt, Patty: Yes

Motion passed 5:0.

None.

None.

Ms. Hajduk reviewed the staff report.

None.

Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes
November 18, 2024

Page 1 of 3




c. Council Discussion

d. Council Decision

Resolution No. 1123, Authorizing a One-Year Contract
Extension with the Santiam Water Control District for
Water Conveyance

a. Staff Report —Julia Hajduk

b. Public Comment

c. Council Discussion

Charter Review Discussion
a. Staff Report — Ross Williamson

b. Public Comment

6
Council asked questions regarding voter approval
requirements, timeline for Urban Renewal, and franchise
fee allocation. Staff responded.
Councilor Patty questioned what the impact to the budget
would be if the budget included a 30% allocation of
franchise fees to streets. Staff responded.

Council discussed the need to identifying areas of the
budget that may need to be cut during future budget
approval processes.

Motion from Councilor Giglio, seconded by Councilor Patty,
to amend Resolution 1122, under section 1B to include that
staff shall prepare an additional 15% of the total franchise
fees collected for a cuts package for consideration as part of
the budget process.

Sims, Giglio, McDonald, Ohrt, Patty: Yes

Motion passed 5:0.

Motion from Councilor Patty to approve Resolution 1122,
with amendment.

Sims, Giglio, McDonald, Ohrt, Patty: Yes

Motion passed 5:0.

Ms. Hajduk reviewed the staff report.

None.

Motion from Councilor Ohrt, seconded by Councilor Patty,
to approve Resolution 1123, Authorizing a One-Year
Contract Extension with the Santiam Water Control District
for Water Conveyance.

Sims, Giglio, McDonald, Ohrt, Patty: Yes

Motion passed 5:0.

Mr. Williamson presented the staff report.

None.

Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes
November 18, 2024

Page 2 of 3



7

c. Council Discussion Council discussed removing this section from the Charter if
there is need to remove or amend other sections.

Communications from City Staff Ms. Hajduk discussed the puddling on 3™ and Ida.

She shared updated on the boards and commissions and
reminded Council of the February 8", 2025 goal setting
session and Holiday Tree Lighting event.

Communications from Mayor and Council Councilor Patty requested clarification on what citizens
should do if their driveway is blocked by Comcast work
crews.

Councilor Ohrt questioned involving the Parks and
Recreation Board with the Pool in order to find funding to
support the pool. Staff responded advising they would be
arranging a meeting with the Friends of the Pool.

Councilor Giglio asked questions regarding the pool levy.

Staff responded.

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 4™ DAY OF NOVEMBER 2024, BY A VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY
COUNCIL.

Date: By:
Steve Sims, Council President
Date: Attest:
Julia Hajduk, City Manager
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3

November 18, 2024



CITY OF STAYTON

MEMORANDUM

TO: Stayton City Council

FROM: James Brand, Finance Director

DATE: December 2, 2024

SUBIJECT: Ordinance No. 1070, Adopting Amendments to the Stayton

Municipal Code to Enable a Biennial Budget Process

ISSUE
Shall the Council amend the Municipal Code to remove reference to an annual budget, thereby allowing
for a biennial budget process?

ENCLOSURE(S)
e Ordinance No. 1070

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinance.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

According to Oregon budget law, local governments may budget either on a one-year (fiscal year) or a
two-year (biennial) budget cycle. The period of 24 months begins July 1 and ends June 30 of the
second following calendar year.

Staff has been discussing and preparing for a possible biennial budget since the last budget. As has
been shared in a recent work session, the single biggest benefit of a biennial budget is the staff time
saved. | estimate over 1,000 hours is spent (for the most highly compensated staff) each time a
budget is created. The demands of our time continue to increase (audits are more complex, GASB
adds requirements almost annually, budget book requirements are added, more surveys to be
completed, dealing with increasingly complex HR matters, we attend conferences and trainings to get
caught up to speed on many matters) and we need to continue to find ways to work more efficiently
by simplifying processes. Having a biennial budget is one of the ways we can work smarter and be
more effective with our responsibilities.

Another benefit is the elimination (every other year) of the effect of the stroke of midnight on June
30t when the budget ends. This budget constraint can be a stress to our staff and construction
companies (during the prime construction season) as we must make sure we owe the correct amount

Resolution 1070, Adopting Amendments to the Stayton Municipal Code to Page 1 of 2
Enable a Biennial Budget Process
December 2, 2024



to fit our budgets. The timing of the delivery of purchases must also fit on one side or the other of
midnight on June 30",

A biennial budget also allows us to better align our projects, including the timing of projects, with the
two-year Council goal setting, essentially helping to ensure the budget is designed to implement the
totality of the goals established.

The state of Oregon started using biennial budgets in 1971 and more cities are moving toward
biennial budgets. Overall, the City’s budget is not overly complex — it is steady and major changes are
rare. There are still opportunities for the City Council to change the budget throughout the year for
various reasons allowed in ORS 294.338(2) & (3). We can always add budget through a resolution if
unexpected revenues become available such as specific purpose grants, bonds, gifts, and unexpected
carry-over from prior years. Declarations of an emergency also allow for budgets to be changed.

One of the disadvantages of the biennial budget is that unbudgeted reserves are not available for use
for two years. In order to ensure flexibility with a biennial budget, we plan to move additional
reserves (unbudgeted) to the contingency (budgeted) line item. We will also convene the Budget
Committee after the first year of the budget to have a thorough analysis of the status of the budget.
This is in addition to the quarterly finance updates that the City provides to the City Council.

Changing to a biennial budget will require us to make some minor adjustments to the term length for
some of the non-councilors that serve on the Budget Committee. Oregon Budget Law requires
governing bodies that have biennial budgets to have their Budget Committee members serve four-year
terms with as close as possible to a 25% turnover each year. In order to get as close to this as possible
(without altering City Council terms), the 2026 appointment of three new Budget Committee Members
will be for a one-year term. This will allow them to participate in one budget creation. The next year
(2027), those three seats will be up for re-election for a standard four-year term.

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no direct fiscal impact with this change, however, as noted above, there will be significant
savings in staff time which has a value.

MOTION(S)
1) Approve Ordinance No. 1070, as presented.

2) Approve Ordinance No. 1070, with the following amendments...

3) Reject proposed changes, no motion necessary.

Resolution 1070, Adopting Amendments to the Stayton Municipal Code to Page 2 of 2
Enable a Biennial Budget Process
December 2, 2024



10

ORDINANCE NO. 1070
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE TO ENABLE A
BIENNIAL BUDGET PROCESS

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council is responsible for ensuring sound fiscal management and
transparent budgeting practices in accordance with Oregon Budget Law (ORS Chapter 294); and

WHEREAS, the City seeks to enhance long-term financial planning and improve the efficiency of
limited staff resources; and

WHEREAS, the staff hours necessary to develop, produce, and present a high quality budget is
significant; and

WHEREAS, the adoption of a biennial budget does not preclude the City Council from making
necessary amendments during the biennium to address unforeseen circumstances, revenue
fluctuations, or other changes in operational needs; and

WHEREAS, a biennial budget beginning July 2025 will align with the Council Goal Setting that occurs
biennially after the election of new Councilmembers; and

WHEREAS, the Budget Committee may continue to meet annually to review financial conditions,
consider any necessary adjustments, and provide opportunities for public input on the City's fiscal
priorities; and

WHEREAS, the biennial budget process will maintain transparency and compliance with all public
hearing and notice requirements under Oregon Budget Law; and

WHEREAS, the City Council retains the authority to adopt supplemental budgets, revise
appropriations, and make other modifications as permitted under Oregon Budget Law to respond to
changing conditions during the biennium; and

WHEREAS, the biennial budget process will continue to provide opportunities for public involvement,
including public hearings, timely publication of budget documents, and compliance with Oregon
Budget Law requirements for notice and disclosure; and

WHEREAS, a biennial budget will require minor updates to language of existing city Ordinances which
reference annual budgets processes.
NOW THEREFORE, THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby directs staff to prepare a biennial budget beginning
with the 2025-2027 fiscal cycle. This budget cycle will be from July 1, 2025
through June 30, 2027 and the following budget cycles will be in successive two
year increments, unless otherwise directed by the Council.

SECTION 2. The City Council will review the effectiveness of the biennial budgeting process
at the conclusion of the first biennium and consider any adjustments to ensure
it meets the City’s financial and operational goals.

Ordinance No. 1070, Adopting Amendments to the Stayton Municipal Code to Page 1 of 2
Enable a Biennial Budget Process



11

SECTION 3. The Stayton Municipal Code shall be amended as follows:
e SMC Chapter 2.08.140.1 — Powers and Duties: Designated is amended as follows:

o 1.To act as budget officer for the City, and to prepare the annuatbudget
including proposals for each department for consideration by the Council
and Budget Committee;

e SMC Chapter 2.48.1180.4 — Library Board: Powers and Duties is amended as
follows:

o 4. Make recommendations to the City Council for the anrnual-budget,
staffing levels, fees, facility improvements, contracts for library services,
fundraising, program and service levels the Library Board deems necessary
for the operation and improvement of the library.

e SMC 3.30 Transportation Maintenance Program is amended as follows:
o SMC 3.30.020.2 — Administrative Officers:

= 2. The Public Works Director shall annuatly develop and update a 5-
year street maintenance program project schedule. This schedule
shall be properly integrated into the City’s capital improvement
program to ensure that it is coordinated with other City capital
projects and projects of other agencies.

o SMC 3.30.040.1 — Annual Transportation Maintenance Program Report

= 1. Eaeh-yeartThe Public Works Director shall prepare and present to
the Budget Committee and City Council the “Annual Transportation
System Maintenance Program Report” as part of the City’s arrual
budget proceedings. This document is a public record.

SECTION 4. Provisions of this Ordinance shall be incorporated into the City Code, and the
City Recorder is authorized to fix and cross-reference and typographical errors.

SECTION 5. This Ordinance takes effect and becomes operative 30 days after adoption.

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 2ND DAY OF DECEMBER 2024.

Signed: ,2024 BY:

Stephen Sims, Council President

Signed: , 2024 ATTEST:

Julia Hajduk, City Manager

Ordinance No. 1070, Adopting a Biennial Budget Process Page 2 of 2



12

CITY OF STAYTON

MEMORANDUM

TO: Stayton City Council
FROM: James Brand, Finance Director
DATE: December 2, 2024

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1071, Amending Stayton Public Contracting Code SMC
3.04.080

ISSUE
The issue before the City Council is whether to amend Stayton Municipal Code 3.04.080 to align with
the new State of Oregon procurement thresholds.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The City, as a public contracting municipality, is subject to the public contracting code in ORS 279.
Cities can either adopt the Attorney General’s model rules or they can adopt their own contracting
rules as the City has done previously. ORS 279 was recently updated by Oregon Senate Bill 1047
(2023) that went into effect January 2024. In order to align with the new State’s procurement
thresholds, the City desires to revise SMC 3.04.080. This change would increase the threshold for
small contract direct awards from $10,000 to $25,000 and increase the upper threshold for
intermediate awards of goods and services from $150,000 to $250,000.

This ordinance would allow additional uses of the efficient direct award process for smaller contracts.
Direct awards are a streamlined way to meet objectives quickly and effectively by not requiring a
competitive bid or quote process. More strict processes can always be added for any solicitation if
desired. The change to intermediate contracts means the contracts between $150,000 and $250,000
would no longer require a formal solicitation. Contracts of this amount still must include either
solicitation of at least three quotes, bids, or requests for proposals.

The City’s partners at Local Government Law Group (attorneys) and SingerLewak (auditors) both
recommend this modification to agree with the State of Oregon’s Public Contracting Code in ORS 279.
The last time the City updated the ordinance for small contracts was in 2013 when the threshold
increased from $5,000 to $10,000.

Additionally, as clean-up to the Municipal Code, City Administrator has been updated to City Manager
throughout the code section.

Ordinance No. 1071, Amending SMC 3.04.080 Page 1 of 2
December 2, 2024



13

FISCAL IMPACT

Ordinance No. 1071 will have no direct fiscal impact. Additional contracts will be able to be made using
less formal procurement methods. This simplifies the process for procurement, reducing the
administrative burden.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
The City recommends approval of Ordinance No. 1071. The changes are updates to comply with current
State Statues, and they allow for efficiency in contracting.

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS
1. Approve Ordinance No. 1071

Move to approve Ordinance No. 1071 as presented.

2. Approve Ordinance No. 1071 with modifications.
Move to amend Ordinance No. 1071 as follows...

3. Do not approve Ordinance No. 1071.

Take no action; the City will continue to operate under SMC 3.04.080 for the rules governing
public contracting.

Ordinance No. 1071, Amending SMC 3.04.080 Page 2 of 2
December 2, 2024



14

ORDINANCE NO. 1071
AMENDING STAYTON PUBLIC CONTRACTING CODE SMC 3.04.080

WHEREAS, the 2023 Oregon Legislature approved and the Governor signed SB1047 which increased
thresholds for certain public contracts;

WHEREAS, SB1047 went into effect January 1, 2024;
WHEREAS, the Stayton Municipal Code 3.04.080 adopts public contracting rules for the City;

WHEREAS, the City’s contracting codes require periodic review and updating to stay current with
applicable laws; and

WHEREAS, the City’s contracting codes should consider efficiency and not be over burdensome.
NOW THEREFORE, THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 3.04.080 of the Stayton Municipal Code shall be amended, as shown in
Exhibit A.

SECTION 2.  Provisions of this Ordinance shall be incorporated into the City’s Municipal
Code, and the City Recorder is authorized to fix and cross-reference any
typographical errors.

SECTION 3. This Ordinance takes effect and becomes operative 30 days after adoption.

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 2NP DAY OF DECEMBER 2024.

Signed: ,2024 BY:

Stephen Sims, Council President

Signed: , 2024 ATTEST:

Julia Hajduk, City Manager

Ordinance No. 1071, Amending Stayton Public Contracting Code 3.04.080 Page1of1



SECTIONS

3.04.010
3.04.020
3.04.030
3.04.040

| 3.04.050
3.04.060
3.04.070
3.04.080
3.04.090
3.04.100
3.04.110
3.04.120
3.04.130
3.04.140

| 3.04.010

15
EXHIBIT A

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE
CHAPTER 3.04

STAYTON PUBLIC CONTRACTING CODE

Policy
Application of Public Contracting Code
Authority and Regulation by Stayton City Council

Model Rules
Authority of City AdministraterManager
Definitions

Process for Approval of Special Solicitation Methods and Exemptions
Solicitation Methods for Classes of Contracts

Informal Solicitation Procedures

Use of Brand Name Specifications for Public Improvements

Bid, Performance and Payment Bonds

Cancellation, Rejection, Delay of Invitations for Bids or Requests for Proposals
Electronic Advertisement of Public Improvement Contracts

Appeal of Debarment or Prequalification Decision

POLICY

A.  Short Title. This Chapter may be cited as the Stayton Public Contracting Code.

B.  Purpose of Public Contracting Code. It is the policy of the City of Stayton in adopting

the Stayton Public Contracting Code to utilize public contracting practices and methods
that maximize the efficient use of public resources and the purchasing power of public

funds by:
1. Promoting impartial and open competition;
2. Using solicitation materials that are complete and contain a clear statement of
contract specifications and requirements; and,
3. Taking full advantage of evolving procurement methods that suit the contracting

needs of the City of Stayton as they emerge within various industries.

C. Interpretation of the Stayton Public Contracting Code. In furtherance of the purpose of

the objectives set forth in subsection B, it is the City of Stayton’s intent that the Stayton
Public Contracting Code be interpreted to authorize the full use of all contracting powers
and authorities described in ORS Chapters 279A, 279B and 279C.

| 3.04.020

APPLICATION OF PUBLIC CONTRACTING CODE

In accordance with ORS 279A.025, the Stayton Public Contracting Code and the Oregon Public
Contracting Code do not apply to the following classes of contracts:

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 1 of 23



16

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

Between Governments. Contracts between the City of Stayton and a public body or
agency of the State of Oregon or its political subdivisions, or between the City of Stayton
and an agency of the federal government.

Grants. A grant contract is an agreement under which the City of Stayton is either a
grantee or a grantor of moneys, property or other assistance, including loans, loan
guarantees, credit enhancements, gifts, bequests, commodities or other assets, for the
purpose of supporting or stimulating a program or activity of the grantee and in which no
substantial involvement by the grantor is anticipated in the program or activity other than
involvement associated with monitoring compliance with the grant conditions. The
making or receiving of a grant is not a public contract subject to the Oregon Public
Contracting Code; however, any grant made by City of Stayton for the purpose of
constructing a public improvement or public works project shall impose conditions on the
grantee that ensure that expenditures of the grant to design or construct the public
improvement or public works project are made in accordance with the Oregon Public
Contracting Code and the Stayton Public Contracting Code.

Legal Witnesses and Consultants. Contracts for professional or expert witnesses or
consultants to provide services or testimony relating to existing or potential litigation or
legal matters in which the City of Stayton is or may become interested.

Real Property. Acquisitions or disposals of real property or interests in real property.
Textbooks. Contracts for the procurement or distribution of textbooks.

Oregon Corrections Enterprises. Procurements from an Oregon corrections enterprises
program.

Finance. Contracts, agreements or other documents entered into, issued or established in
connection with:

1. The incurring of debt by the City of Stayton, including any associated contracts,
agreements or other documents, regardless of whether the obligations that the
contracts, agreements or other documents establish are general, special or limited;

2. The making of program loans and similar extensions or advances of funds, aid or
assistance by the City of Stayton to a public or private person for the purpose of
carrying out, promoting or sustaining activities or programs authorized by law
other than for the construction of public works or public improvements;

3. The investment of funds by the City of Stayton as authorized by law; or,

4. Banking, money management or other predominantly financial transactions of the
City of Stayton that, by their character, cannot practically be established under the
competitive contractor selection procedures, based upon the findings of the City
AdministratorManager.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 2 of 23



17

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

Employee Benefits. Contracts for employee benefit plans as provided in ORS
243.105(1), 243.125 (4), 243.221, 243.275, 243.291, 243.303 and 243.565, or in the
Stayton Municipal Code.

Exempt Under State Laws. Any other public contracting specifically exempted from the
Oregon Public Contracting Code by any other provision of law.

Federal Law. Except as otherwise expressly provided in ORS 279C.800 to 279C.870,
applicable federal statutes and regulations govern when federal funds are involved and
the federal statutes or regulations conflict with any provision of the Oregon Public
Contracting Code or the Stayton Public Contracting Code or require additional conditions
in public contracts not authorized by the Oregon Public Contracting Code or the Stayton
Public Contracting Code.

3.04.030 AUTHORITY AND REGULATION BY STAYTON CITY COUNCIL

Except as expressly delegated under this Chapter, the Stayton City Council reserves to itself the
exercise of all of the duties and authority of a Contract Review Board and a contracting agency
under state law, including, but not limited to, the power and authority to:

A.

Solicitation Methods Applicable to Contracts. Approve the use of contracting methods
and exemptions from contracting methods for a specific contract or certain classes of
contracts;

Brand Name Specifications. Exempt the use of brand name specifications for public
improvement contracts;

Waiver of Performance and Payment Bonds. Approve the partial or complete waiver of
the requirement for the delivery of a performance or payment bond for construction of a
public improvement, other than in cases of emergencies;

Electronic Advertisement of Public Improvement Contracts. Authorize the use of
electronic advertisements for public improvement contracts in lieu of publication in a
newspaper of general circulation;

Appeals of Debarment and Prequalification Decisions. Hear properly filed appeals of the
City AdministratorManager’s determination of debarment, or concerning
prequalification;

Rulemaking. Adopt contracting rules under ORS 279A.065 and ORS 279A.070
including, without limitation, rules for the procurement, management, disposal and
control of goods, services, personal services and public improvements; and

Award. Award all contracts that exceed the authority of the City AdministraterManager.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 3 of 23



18

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE
3.04.040 MODEL RULES

The Model Rules adopted by the Oregon Attorney General under ORS 279A.065 are adopted as
supplemental to this Chapter only to the extent that they do not conflict with the public
contracting code adopted by Stayton City Council.

3.04.050 AUTHORITY OF CITY ADMINISTRATORMANAGER

A. General Authority. The Stayton City Administrater-Manager is hereby authorized to
issue all solicitations and to award all City of Stayton contracts for which the contract
price does not exceed $150,000. Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, the City
Administrator-Manager may adopt and amend all solicitation materials, contracts and
forms required or permitted to be adopted by contracting agencies under the Oregon
Public Contracting Code or otherwise convenient for the City of Stayton’s contracting
needs. The City AdministratorManager shall hear all solicitation and award protests.

B. Solicitation Preferences. When possible, the City AdministratorManager shall use
solicitation documents and evaluation criteria that:

1. Give preference to goods and services that have been manufactured or produced
in the State of Oregon if price, fitness, availability and quality are otherwise
equal; and,

2. Give preference to goods that are certified to be made from recycled products
when such goods are available, can be substituted for non-recycled products
without a loss in quality, and the cost of goods made from recycled products is not
significantly more than the cost of goods made from non-recycled products.

C. Delegation of City AdministratorManager’s Authority. Any of the responsibilities or
authorities of the City AdministraterManager under this Chapter may be delegated by
administrative directive.

D. Mandatory Review of ORS and Model Rules. Whenever the Oregon State Legislative
Assembly enacts laws that amend the provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code
and/or cause the Oregon Attorney General to modify its Model Rules, the City
AdministratorManager shall review the Stayton Public Contracting Code and recommend
to the Stayton City Council any modifications required to ensure compliance with
statutory or rule changes.

3.04.060 DEFINITIONS
The following terms used in this Chapter shall have the meanings set forth below.

AWARD: means the selection of a person to provide goods, services or public improvements
under a public contract. The award of a contract is not binding on the City of Stayton until the
contract is executed and delivered by City of Stayton.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 4 of 23



19

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

BID: means a binding, sealed, written offer to provide goods, services or public improvements
for a specified price or prices.

CITY ADMINISTRATORMANAGER: means the Stayton City Council’s duly appointed City
AdministratorManager who may designate respective duties under this Chapter to a Purchasing
Manager or a Solicitation Agent, defined herein, as deemed appropriate.

CONCESSION AGREEMENT: means a contract that authorizes and requires a private entity
or individual to promote or sell, for its own business purposes, specified types of goods or
services from real property owned or managed by the City of Stayton, and under which the
concessionaire makes payments to the City of Stayton based, at least in part, on the
concessionaire’s revenues or sales. The term “concession agreement” does not include a mere rental
agreement, license or lease for the use of premises.

CONTRACT PRICE: means the total amount paid or to be paid under a contract, including any
approved alternates, and any fully executed change orders or amendments.

CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD OR LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD: means the
Stayton City Council.

COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT: means a procurement conducted by or on behalf of one
or more contracting agencies.

DEBARMENT: means a declaration by the City AdministraterManager under ORS 279B.130 or
ORS 279C.440 that prohibits a potential contractor from competing for the City of Stayton’s public
contracts for a prescribed period of time.

DISPOSAL: means any arrangement for the transfer of property by the City of Stayton under which
the City of Stayton relinquishes ownership.

EMERGENCY: means circumstances that create a substantial risk of loss, damage or
interruption of services or a substantial threat to property, public health, welfare or safety; and
require prompt execution of a contract to remedy the condition.

FINDINGS: are the statements of fact that provide justification for a determination. Findings
may include, but are not limited to, information regarding operation, budget and financial data;
public benefits; cost savings; competition in public contracts; quality and aesthetic
considerations, value engineering; specialized expertise needed; public safety; market conditions;
technical complexity; availability, performance and funding sources.

GOODS: means any item or combination of supplies, equipment, materials or other personal
property, including any tangible, intangible and intellectual property and rights and licenses in
relation thereto.

INFORMAL SOLICITATION: means a solicitation made in accordance with the Stayton
Public Contracting Code to a limited number of potential contractors, in which the Solicitation
Agent attempts to obtain at least three written quotes or proposals.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 5 of 23



20

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE
INVITATION TO BID: means a publicly advertised request for competitive sealed bids.

MODEL RULES: means the public contracting rules adopted by the Oregon Attorney General
pursuant to ORS 279A.065.

OFFEROR: means a person who submits a bid, quote or proposal to enter into a public contract
with the City of Stayton.

OREGON PUBLIC CONTRACTING CODE: means ORS Chapters 279A, 279B and 279C.

PERSON: means a natural person or any other private or governmental entity, having the legal
capacity to enter into a binding contract.

PROPOSAL: means a binding offer to provide goods, services or public improvements with the
understanding that acceptance will depend on the evaluation of factors other than, or in addition
to, price. A proposal may be made in response to a request for proposals or under an informal
solicitation.

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT: means a contract with an independent contractor
predominantly for services that require special training or certification, skill, technical, creative,
professional or communication skills or talents, unique and specialized knowledge, or the
exercise of judgment skills, and for which the quality of the service depends on attributes that are
unique to the service provider. Such services include, but are not limited to, the services of
architects, engineers, land surveyors, attorneys, auditors and other licensed professionals, artists,
designers, computer programmers, performers, consultants and property managers. The Clty
AdministratorManager shall have discretion to determine whether additional types of services
not specifically mentioned in this paragraph fit within the definition of personal services.

PUBLIC CONTRACT: means a sale or other disposal, or a purchase, lease, rental or other
acquisition, by the City of Stayton of personal property, services, including personal services,
public improvements, public works, minor alterations, or ordinary repair or maintenance
necessary to preserve a public improvement.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT: means a project for construction, reconstruction or major
renovation on real property by or for the City of Stayton. “Public improvement” does not
include:

1. Projects for which no funds of the City of Stayton are directly or indirectly used,
except for participation that is incidental or related primarily to project design or
inspection; or,

2. Emergency work, minor alteration, ordinary repair or maintenance necessary to
preserve a public improvement.

PURCHASING MANAGER: means with respect to a particular procurement, the City
AdministratorManager, or designee, performing procurement duties pursuant to the Stayton
Public Contracting Code.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 6 of 23



21

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

QUALIFIED POOL: means a pool of vendors who are pre-qualified to compete for the award
of contracts for certain types of contracts or to provide certain types of services.

QUOTE: means a price offer made in response to an informal or qualified pool solicitation to
provide goods, services or public improvements.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP): means a publicly advertised request for sealed
competitive proposals.

SSERVICES: means and includes all types of services (including construction labor) other than
personal services.

SOLICITATION: means an invitation to one or more prospective contractors to submit a bid,
proposal, quote, statement of qualifications or letter of interest to the City of Stayton with respect
to a proposed project, procurement or other contracting opportunity. The word “solicitation” also
refers to the process by which the City of Stayton requests, receives and evaluates potential
contractors and awards public contracts.

SOLICITATION AGENT: means with respect to a particular solicitation, the City
AdministratorManager, or designee, conducting the solicitation and making an award.

SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS: means all informational materials issued by the City of
Stayton for a solicitation, including, but not limited to RFP, advertisements, instructions,
submission requirements and schedules, award criteria, contract terms and specifications, and all
laws, regulations and documents incorporated by reference.

STANDARDS OF RESPONSIBILITY: means the qualifications of eligibility for award of a
public contract. An offeror meets the standards of responsibility if the offeror has:

1. Available the appropriate financial, material, equipment, facility and personnel
resources and expertise, or ability to obtain the resources and expertise, necessary to
indicate the capability of the offeror to meet all contractual responsibilities;

2. A satisfactory record of performance. The Solicitation Agent shall document the
record of performance of an offeror if the Solicitation Agent finds the offeror to be
not responsible under this paragraph;

3. A satisfactory record of integrity. The Solicitation Agent shall document the record
of integrity of an offeror if the Solicitation Agent finds the offeror to be not
responsible under this paragraph;

4. Qualified legally to contract with the City of Stayton;

5. Supplied all necessary information in connection with the inquiry concerning
responsibility. If an offeror fails to promptly supply information requested by the
Solicitation Agent concerning responsibility, the Solicitation Agent shall base the
determination of responsibility upon any available information or may find the

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 7 of 23



22

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

offeror non-responsible; and,

6. Not been debarred by the City of Stayton, and, in the case of public improvement
contracts, has not been listed by the Oregon Construction Contractors Board as a
contractor not qualified to hold a public improvement contract.

SURPLUS PROPERTY: means personal property owned by the City of Stayton which is no
longer needed for use by the department to which such property has been assigned.

3.04.070

A.

PROCESS FOR APPROVAL OF SPECIAL SOLICITATION METHODS
AND EXEMPTIONS

Authority of Stayton City Council. In its capacity as Contract Review Board for the City

of Stayton, the Stayton City Council, upon its own initiative, or upon request of the City
AdministratorManager, may create special selection, evaluation and award procedures
for, or may exempt from competition, the award of a specific contract or class of
contracts as provided in this section 3.04.070.

Basis for Approval. The approval of a special solicitation method or exemption from

competition must be based upon a record before the Stayton City Council that contains
the following:

1.

The nature of the contract or class of contracts for which the special solicitation or
exemption is requested;

The estimated contract price or cost of the project, if relevant;

Findings to support the substantial cost savings, enhancement in quality or
performance or other public benefit anticipated by the proposed selection method
or exemption from competitive solicitation;

Findings to support the reason that approval of the request would be unlikely to
encourage favoritism or diminish competition for the public contract or class of
public contracts, or would otherwise substantially promote the public interest in a
manner that could not practicably be realized by complying with the solicitation
requirements that would otherwise be applicable under this Chapter;

A description of the proposed alternative contracting methods to be employed;
The estimated date by which it would be necessary to let the contract(s); and,

In making a determination regarding a special selection method, the Stayton City
Council may consider the type, cost, amount of the contract or class of contracts,
number of persons available to make offers, and such other factors as it may deem
appropriate.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 8 of 23



23

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

C. Hearing

1. The City of Stayton shall approve the special solicitation or exemption after a
public hearing before the Stayton City Council following notice by publication in
at least one newspaper of general circulation in the City of Stayton area.

2. At the public hearing, the City of Stayton shall offer an opportunity for the public
and any interested party to appear and present comment.

3. The Stayton City Council will consider the findings and may approve the
exemption as proposed or as modified by the Stayton City Council after providing
an opportunity for public comment.

D. Special Requirements for Public Improvement Contracts

1. Notification of the public hearing for exemption of a public improvement
contract, or class of public improvement contracts, shall be published in a trade
newspaper of general statewide circulation at least 14 days prior to the hearing.

2. The notice shall state that the public hearing is for the purpose of taking
comments on the City of Stayton’s draft findings for an exemption from the
standard solicitation method. At the time of the notice, copies of the draft
findings shall be made available to the public.

E. Commencement of Solicitation Prior to Approval. A solicitation may be issued prior to
the approval of a special exemption under this section 3.04.070, provided that the closing
of the solicitation may not be earlier than five days after the date of the hearing at which
the Stayton City Council approves the exemption. If the Stayton City Council fails to
approve a requested exemption or requires the use of a solicitation procedure other than
the procedures described in the issued solicitation documents, the issued solicitation may
either be modified by addendum or cancelled.

3.04.080 SOLICITATION METHODS FOR CLASSES OF CONTRACTS

The following classes of public contracts and the methods that are approved for the award of
each of the classes are hereby established by the Stayton City Council.

A. Purchases from Nonprofit Agencies for Disabled Individuals. The City of Stayton shall
give a preference to goods, services and public improvements available from qualified
nonprofit agencies for disabled individuals in accordance with the provisions of ORS
279.835 through 279.850.

B. Public Improvement Contracts
1. Any Public Improvement. Unless otherwise provided in this Chapter or approved

for a special exemption, public improvement contracts in any amount may be
issued only under an invitation to bid.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 9 of 23



24

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

2. Non-Transportation Public Improvements Up to $100,000. Public improvement
contracts other than contracts for a highway, bridge or other transportation
projects for which the estimated contract price does not exceed $100,000, may be
awarded using an informal solicitation for quotes.

3. Transportation Public Improvements Up to $50,000. Contracts for which the
estimated contract price does not exceed $50,000 for highways, bridges or other
transportation projects may be awarded using an informal solicitation for quotes.

4. City of Stayton-Funded, Privately-Constructed Public Improvements. The City of
Stayton may contribute funding to a privately-constructed public improvement
project without subjecting the project to competitive solicitation requirements if
all of the following conditions are met with respect to the entire public
improvement project:

(a) The City of Stayton’s contribution to the project may not exceed 25%
of the total cost of the project;

(b) The City of Stayton must comply with all applicable laws concerning
the reporting of the project to the Bureau of Labor and Industries as a
public works project;

(c) The general contractor for the project must agree in writing to comply
with all applicable laws concerning reporting and payment of
prevailing wages for the project;

(d) The funds contributed to the project may not provide a pecuniary
benefit to the owner of the development for which the project is being
constructed, other than benefits that are shared by all members of the
community;

(e) The performance of the general contractor and the payment of labor
for the project must be secured by performance and payment bonds or
other cash-equivalent security that is acceptable to the City
AdministratorManager to protect the City of Stayton against defective
performance and claims for payment; and,

() The contract for construction of the project must be amended, as
necessary, to require the general contractor to maintain adequate
workers’ compensation and liability insurance and to protect and
provide indemnification to the City of Stayton for all claims for
payment, injury or property damage arising from or related to the
construction of the project.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 10 of 23



25

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

C. Personal Services Contracts

1.

Any Personal Services Contract. Except as provided herein, personal services
contracts in any amount may be awarded under a publicly advertised request for
competitive sealed proposals.

Personal Service Contracts Not Exceeding $250,000150.009. Contracts for
personal services for which the estimated contract price does not exceed
$250.,000+56;606 may be awarded using an informal solicitation for proposals as
provided in Section 3.04.090 hereof.

$75,000 Award from Qualified Pool. Contracts for personal services for which the
estimated contract price does not exceed $75,000 may be awarded by direct
appointment without competition from a Qualified Pool.

Personal Service Contracts Not Exceeding $25.00026.-606 Per Year. Contracts for
which the Solicitation Agent estimates that payments will not exceed
$25.00020;669 in any fiscal year or $150,000 over the full term, including
optional renewals, may be awarded under any method deemed in the City of
Stayton’s best interest by the Solicitation Agent, including by direct appointment.

Personal Service Contracts for Continuation of Work. Contracts of not more than
$150,000 for the continuation of work by a contractor who performed preliminary
studies, analysis or planning for the work under a prior contract may be awarded
without competition if the prior contract was awarded under a competitive process
and the Solicitation Agent determines that use of the original contractor will
significantly reduce the costs of, or risks associated with, the work.

D. Hybrid Contracts. The following classes of contracts include elements of construction of
public improvements as well as personal services and may be awarded under a request for
proposals, unless exempt from competitive solicitation.

1.

Design/Build and Construction Manager/General Contractor (“CM/GC”)
Contracts. Contracts for the construction of public improvements using a
design/build or construction manager/general contractor construction method
shall be awarded under a request for proposals. The determination to construct a
project using a design/build or construction manager/general contractor
construction method must be approved by the Stayton City Council or designee,
upon application of the Solicitation Agent, in which the Solicitation Agent
submits facts that support a finding that the construction of the improvement
under the proposed method is likely to result in cost savings, higher quality,
reduced errors, or other benefits to the City of Stayton.

Energy Savings Performance Contracts. Unless the contract qualifies for award
under another classification in this section 3.04.080, contractors for energy
savings performance contracts shall be selected under a request for proposals in
accordance with the Stayton Public Contracting Code.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 11 of 23



26

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

E. Contracts for Goods and Services

1.

Any Procurement. The procurement of goods or services, or goods and services
in any amount may be made under either an invitation to bid or a request for
proposals.

Procurements Up to $250.000+56.000. The procurement of goods or services, or
goods and services, for which the estimated contract price does not exceed
$250.000+56;6066 may be made under an informal solicitation for either quotes or
proposals.

F. Contracts Subject to Award at City AdministraterManager’s Discretion. The following
classes of contracts may be awarded in any manner which the City
AdministratorManager deems appropriate to the City of Stayton’s needs, including by
direct appointment or purchase. Except where otherwise provided, the City
AdministratorManager shall make a record of the method of award.

1.

2.

Advertising. Contracts for the placing of notice or advertisements in any medium.

Amendments. Contract amendments shall not be considered to be separate
contracts if made in accordance with the Stayton Public Contracting Code.

Animals. Contracts for the purchase of animals.
Contracts Up to $25.00040:606. Contracts of any type for which the contract

price does not exceed $25.000+0;606 without a record of the method of award.
(Ord No. 959, 2013)

Copyrighted Materials; Library Materials. Contracts for the acquisition of
materials entitled to copyright, including, but not limited to works of art and
design, literature and music, or materials, even if not entitled to copyright,
purchased for use as library lending materials.

Equipment Repair. Contracts for equipment repair or overhauling, provided the
service or parts required are unknown and the cost cannot be determined without
extensive preliminary dismantling or testing.

Government Regulated Items. Contracts for the purchase of items for which
prices or selection of suppliers are regulated by a governmental authority.

Insurance. Insurance and service contracts as provided for under ORS 414.115,
414.125, 414.135 and 414.145, and the Stayton Municipal Code.

Non-Owned Property. Contracts or arrangements for the sale or other disposal of
abandoned property or other personal property not owned by the City of Stayton.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 12 of 23



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

27

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

Sole Source Contracts. Contracts for goods or services which are available from a
single source may be awarded without competition.

Specialty Goods for Resale. Contracts for the purchase of specialty goods by City
of Stayton for resale to consumers.

Sponsorship Agreements. Sponsorship agreements, under which the City of Stayton
receives a gift or donation in exchange for recognition of the donor.

Structures. Contracts for the disposal of structures located on City of Stayton-
owned property.

Renewals. Contracts that are being renewed in accordance with their terms are not
considered to be newly issued Contracts and are not subject to competitive
procurement procedures.

Temporary Extensions or Renewals. Contracts for a single period of one year or
less, for the temporary extension or renewal of an expiring and non-renewable, or
recently expired, contract, other than a contract for public improvements.

Temporary Use of City of Stayton-Owned Property. The City of Stayton may
negotiate and enter into a license, permit or other contract for the temporary use
of City of Stayton-owned property without using a competitive selection process
if:

(a) The contract results from an unsolicited proposal to the City of Stayton
based on the unique attributes of the property or the unique needs of
the proposer;

(b) The proposed use of the property is consistent with the City of
Stayton’s use of the property and the public interest; and,

(c) The City of Stayton reserves the right to terminate the contract without
penalty, in the event that the City of Stayton determines that the
contract is no longer consistent with the City of Stayton’s present or
planned use of the property or the public interest.

Used Property. The City AdministratorManager may contract for the purchase of
used property by negotiation if such property is suitable for the City of Stayton’s
needs and can be purchased for a lower cost than substantially similar new
property. For this purpose the cost of used property shall be based upon the life-
cycle cost of the property over the period for which the property will be used by
the City of Stayton. The City AdministratorManager shall record the findings that
support the purchase.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 13 of 23



28

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

18. Utilities. Contracts for the purchase of steam, power, heat, water,

telecommunications services, and other utilities.

G. Contracts Required by Emergency Circumstances

1.

In General. When an official with authority to enter into a contract on behalf of
the City of Stayton determines that immediate execution of a contract within the
official’s authority is necessary to prevent substantial damage or injury to persons
or property, the official may execute the contract without competitive selection
and award or Stayton City Council approval, but, where time permits, the official
shall attempt to use competitive price and quality evaluation before selecting an
emergency contractor.

Reporting. An official who enters into an emergency contract shall, as soon as
possible, in light of the emergency circumstances,

(a) document the nature of the emergency; the method used for selection
of the particular contractor and the reason why the selection method
was deemed in the best interest of the City of Stayton and the public,
and

(b) notify the Stayton City Council of the facts and circumstances
surrounding the emergency execution of the contract.

Emergency Public Improvement Contracts. A public improvement contract may
only be awarded under emergency circumstances if the Stayton City Council or
City AdministratorManager has made a written declaration of emergency. Any
Public Improvement Contract award under emergency conditions must be
awarded within 60 Days following the declaration of an emergency unless the
Stayton City Council grants an extension of the emergency period. Where the
time delay needed to obtain a payment or performance bond for the contract could
result in injury or substantial property damage, the City AdministraterManager
may waive the requirement for all or a portion of required performance and payment
bonds.

H. Federal Purchasing Programs. Goods and services may be purchased without competitive
procedures under a local government purchasing program administered by the United
States General Services Administration (“GSA”) as provided in this subsection.

1.

The procurement must be made in accordance with procedures established by
GSA for procurements by local governments, and under purchase orders or
contracts submitted to and approved by the City AdwministraterManager. The
Solicitation Agent shall provide the City AdministratorManager with a copy of
the letter, memorandum or other documentation from GSA establishing
permission to the City of Stayton to purchase under the federal program.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 14 of 23



29

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

2. The price of the goods or services must be established under price agreements

between the federally approved vendor and GSA.

The price of the goods or services must be less than the price at which such goods
or services are available under state or local cooperative purchasing programs that
are available to the City of Stayton.

If a single purchase of goods or services exceeds $250,000+56,060, the
Solicitation Agent must obtain informal written quotes or proposals from at least
two additional vendors (if reasonably available) and find, in writing, that the
goods or services offered by GSA represent the best value for the City of Stayton.
This paragraph does not apply to the purchase of equipment manufactured or sold
solely for military or law enforcement purposes.

I. Cooperative Procurement Contracts. Cooperative procurements may be made without
competitive solicitation as provided in the Oregon Public Contracting Code.

J.  Surplus Property

1.

General Methods. Surplus property may be disposed of by any of the following
methods upon a determination by the City AdministratorManager that the method
of disposal is in the best interest of the City of Stayton. Factors that may be
considered by the City AdministraterManager include costs of sale, administrative
costs, and public benefits to the City of Stayton. The City AdministraterManager
shall maintain a record of the reason for the disposal method selected, and the
manner of disposal, including the name of the person to whom the surplus
property was transferred.

(a) Governments. Without competition, by transfer or sale to another city
department or other public agency.

(b) Auction. By publicly advertised auction to the highest bidder.
(c) Bids. By public advertised invitation to bid.
(d) Liquidation Sale. By liquidation sale using a commercially recognized

third-party liquidator selected in accordance with rules for the award
of personal services contracts.

(e) Fixed Price Sale. The City AdministraterManager may establish a
selling price based upon an independent appraisal or published
schedule of values generally accepted by the insurance industry,
schedule and advertise a sale date, and sell to the first buyer meeting
the sale terms.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 15 of 23



30

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

6] Trade-In. By trade-in, in conjunction with acquisition of other price-
based items under a competitive solicitation. The solicitation shall
require the offer to state the total value assigned to the surplus property
to be traded.

(2) Donation. By donation to any organization operating within or
providing a service to residents of the City of Stayton which is
recognized by the Internal Revenue Service as an organization
described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended.

Disposal of Property with Minimal Value. Surplus property which has a value of
less than $500, or for which the costs of sale are likely to exceed sale proceeds
may be disposed of by any means determined to be cost-effective, including by
disposal as waste. The official making the disposal shall make a record of the
value of the item and the manner of disposal.

Personal-Use Items. An item (or indivisible set) of specialized and personal use
with a current value of less than $100 may be sold to the employee or retired or
terminated employee for whose use it was purchased. These items may be sold
for fair market value without bid and by a process deemed most efficient by the
City AdministraterManager, or may be gifted to the employee as the City
AdministratorManager determines is appropriate under the circumstances.

Restriction on Sale to City of Stayton Employees. City of Stayton employees shall
not be restricted from competing, as members of the public, for the purchase of
publicly sold surplus property, but shall not be permitted to offer to purchase
property to be sold to the first qualifying bidder until at least three days after the
first date on which notice of the sale is first publicly advertised.

Conveyance to Purchaser. Upon the consummation of a sale of surplus personal
property, the City of Stayton shall make, execute and deliver, a bill of sale
(certificate of title, etc.) signed on behalf of the City of Stayton, conveying the
property in question to the purchaser and delivering possession, or the right to
take possession, of the property to the purchaser.

K. Concession Agreements

1.

In General. No part of a Concession Agreement shall contain or constitute a
waiver of any generally applicable rules, code provisions or requirements of the
City of Stayton concerning regulation, registration, licensing, inspection, or
permit requirements for any construction, rental or business activity.

Classes of Contracts Eligible for Award Without Competition. The following
Concession Agreements may be awarded by any method deemed appropriate by
the Solicitation Agent, including without limitation, by direct appointment,
private negotiation, from a qualified pool, or using a competitive process.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 16 of 23



(a)

(b)

31

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

Contracts Under $5.000. Contracts under which the Solicitation Agent
estimates that receipts by the City of Stayton will not exceed $5,000 in
any fiscal year and $50,000 in the aggregate.

Single Event Concessions. Concessions to sell or promote food,
beverages, merchandise or services at a single public event shall be
awarded based on any method determined by the City
AdministratorManager to provide a fair opportunity to all persons
desiring to operate a concession, but in which the promotion of the
public interest and success of the event shall be of predominant
importance.

3. Competitive Award. Concession Agreements solicited by the City of Stayton for
the use of designated public premises for a term greater than a single event shall
be awarded as follows:

3.04.090

(a)

(b)

Small Concessions. For Concession Agreements for which the
concessionaire’s projected annual gross revenues are estimated to be
$500,000 or less, the City AdministratorManager has discretion to use
either an informal solicitation or formal request for proposals process
applicable to contracts for personal services. If the proposals received
indicate a probability that the concessionaire’s annual gross revenues
will exceed $500,000, the Solicitation Agent may, but shall not be
required to, reissue the solicitation as a request for proposals.

Major Concessions. Concession Agreements for which the
concessionaire’s projected annual gross revenues under the contract are
estimated to exceed $500,000 annually shall be awarded using a
request for proposals.

INFORMAL SOLICITATION PROCEDURES

The City of Stayton may use the following procedure for informal solicitations, in lieu of the
procedures set forth in the Oregon Attorney General’s Model Rules.

A. Informally Solicited Quotes and Proposals

1.

Solicitation of Offers. When authorized by this Chapter, an informal solicitation

may be made by general or limited advertisement to a certain group of vendors,
by direct inquiry to persons selected by the Solicitation Agent, or in any other
manner which the Solicitation Agent deems suitable for obtaining competitive
quotes or proposals. The Solicitation Agent shall deliver or otherwise make
available to potential offerors, a written scope of work, a description of how
quotes or proposals are to be submitted and description of the criteria for award.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 17 of 23



32

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

2. Award. The Solicitation Agent shall attempt to obtain a minimum of three written

quotes or proposals before making an award. If the award is made solely on the
basis of price, the Solicitation Agent shall award the contract to the responsible
offeror that submits the lowest responsive quote. If the award is based on criteria
other than, or in addition to, price, the Solicitation Agent shall award the contract
to the responsible offeror that will best serve the interest of the City of Stayton,
based on the criteria for award.

Records. A written record of all persons solicited and offers received shall be
maintained. Ifthree offers cannot be obtained, a lesser number will suffice,
provided that a written record is made of the effort to obtain the quotes.

B. Qualified Pools

1.

In General. To create a qualified pool, the City AdministraterManager may invite
prospective contractors to submit their qualifications to the City of Stayton for
inclusion as participants in a pool of contractors qualified to provide certain types
of goods, services, or projects including personal services, and public
improvements.

Advertisement. The invitation to participate in a qualified pool shall be advertised
in the manner provided for advertisements of invitations to bid and requests for
proposals by publication in at least one newspaper of general statewide
circulation. If qualification will be for a term that exceeds one year or allows
open entry on a continuous basis, the invitation to participate in the pool must be
re-published at least once per year and shall be posted at the City of Stayton’s
main office and on its website.

Contents of Solicitation. Requests for participation in a qualified pool shall
describe the scope of goods or services or projects for which the pool will be
maintained, and the minimum qualifications for participation in the pool, which
may include, but shall not be limited to qualifications related to financial stability,
contracts with manufacturers or distributors, certification as an emerging small
business, insurance, licensure, education, training, experience and demonstrated
skills of key personnel, access to equipment, and other relevant qualifications that
are important to the contracting needs of the City of Stayton.

Contract. The operation of each qualified pool may be governed by the provisions
of a pool contract to which the City of Stayton and all pool participants are
parties. The Contract shall contain all terms required by the City of Stayton,
including, without limitation, terms related to price, performance, business
registration or licensure, continuing education, insurance, and requirements for
the submission, on an annual or other periodic basis, of evidence of continuing
qualification. The qualified pool contract shall describe the selection procedures
that the City of Stayton may use to issue contract job orders. The selection
procedures shall be objective and open to all pool participants and afford all
participants the opportunity to compete for or receive job awards. Unless

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 18 of 23



3.04.100

33

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

expressly provided in the contract, participation in a qualified pool will not entitle
a participant to the award of any City of Stayton contract.

Use of Qualified Pools. Subject to the provisions of this Chapter concerning
methods of solicitation for classes of contracts, the Solicitation Agent shall award
all contracts for goods or services of the type for which a qualified pool is created
from among the pool’s participants, unless the Solicitation Agent determines that
best interests of the City of Stayton require solicitation by public advertisement,
in which case, pool participants shall be notified of the solicitation and invited to
submit competitive proposals.

Amendment and Termination. The City AdministraterManager may discontinue a
qualified pool at any time or may change the requirements for eligibility as a
participant in the pool at any time, by giving notice to all participants in the
qualified pool.

Protest of Failure to Qualify. The City AdministratorManager shall notify any
applicant who fails to qualify for participation in a pool that it may appeal a

qualified pool decision to the Stayton City Council in the manner described in
section 3.04.140.

USE OF BRAND NAME SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS

A. In General. Specifications for contracts shall not expressly or implicitly require any
product by one brand name or mark, nor the product of one particular manufacturer or
seller, except for the following reasons:

1.

It is unlikely that such exemption will encourage favoritism in the awarding of
Public improvement Contracts or substantially diminish competition for Public
Improvement Contracts;

The specification of a product by brand name or mark, or the product of a
particular manufacturer or seller, would result in substantial cost savings to the
City of Stayton;

There is only one manufacturer or seller of the product of the quality required; or,

Efficient utilization of existing equipment, systems or supplies requires the
acquisition of compatible equipment or supplies.

B. Authority of City AdministraterManager. The City AdministratorManager shall have

authority to determine whether an exemption for the use of a specific brand name
specification should be granted by recording findings that support the exemption based
on the provisions of section 3.04.100A.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 19 of 23



C.

34

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

Brand Name or Equivalent. Nothing in this section 3.04.100 prohibits the City of Stayton
from using a “brand name or equivalent” specification, from specifying one or more
comparable products as examples of the quality, performance, functionality or other
characteristics of the product needed by the City of Stayton, or from establishing a
qualified product list.

3.04.110 BID, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

A.

D.

Solicitation Agent May Require Bonds. The Solicitation Agent may require bid security
and a good and sufficient performance and payment bond even though the contract is of a
class that is exempt from the requirement.

. Bid Security. Except as otherwise exempted, the solicitations for all contracts that

include the construction of a public improvement and for which the estimated contract
price will exceed $75,000 shall require bid security. Bid security for a request for
proposal may be based on the City of Stayton's estimated contract price.

. Performance Bonds

1. In General. Except as provided in this Chapter, all public contracts are exempt
from the requirement for the furnishing of a performance bond.

2. Contracts Involving Public Improvements. Prior to executing a contract for more
than $50,000 that includes the construction of a public improvement, the
contractor must deliver a performance bond in an amount equal to the full
contract price conditioned on the faithful performance of the contract in
accordance with the plans, specifications and conditions of the contract. The
performance bond must be solely for the protection of the City of Stayton and any
public agency that is providing funding for the project for which the contract was
awarded.

3. Cash-in-Lieu. The City AdministratorManager or Stayton City Council may
permit the successful offeror to submit a cashier’s check or certified check in lieu
of all or a portion of the required performance bond.

Payment Bonds

1. In General. Except as provided in this Chapter, all public contracts are exempt
from the requirement for the furnishing of a payment bond.

2. Contracts Involving Public Improvements. Prior to executing a contract for more
than $50,000 that includes the construction of a public improvement, the
contractor must deliver a payment bond equal to the full contract price, solely for
the protection of claimants under ORS 279C.600.

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 20 of 23



35

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

F. Design/Build Contracts. If the Public Improvement Contract is with a single person to
provide both design and construction of a public improvement, the obligation of the
performance bond for the faithful performance of the contract must also be for the
preparation and completion of the design and related services covered under the contract.
Notwithstanding when a cause of action, claim or demand accrues or arises, the surety is
not liable after final completion of the contract, or longer if provided for in the contract,
for damages of any nature, economic or otherwise and including corrective work,
attributable to the design aspect of a design-build project, or for the costs of design
revisions needed to implement corrective work.

G. Construction Manager/General Contractor Contracts. If the Public Improvement Contract
is with a single person to provide construction manager and general contractor services,
in which a guaranteed maximum price may be established by an amendment authorizing
construction period services following preconstruction period services, the contractor
shall provide the bonds required by section 3.04.110A of this section upon execution of
an amendment establishing the guaranteed maximum price. The City of Stayton shall also
require the contractor to provide bonds equal to the value of construction services
authorized by any early work amendment in advance of the guaranteed maximum price
amendment. Such bonds must be provided before construction starts.

H. Surety; Obligation. Each performance bond and each payment bond must be executed
solely by a surety company or companies holding a certificate of authority to transact
surety business in Oregon. The bonds may not constitute the surety obligation of an
individual or individuals. The performance and payment bonds must be payable to the
City of Stayton or to the public agency or agencies for whose benefit the bond is issued,
as specified in the solicitation documents, and shall be in a form approved by the City
AdministratorManager.

I. Emergencies. In cases of emergency, or when the interest or property of the City of
Stayton probably would suffer material injury by delay or other cause, the requirement of
furnishing a good and sufficient performance bond and a good and sufficient payment
bond for the faithful performance of any public improvement contract may be excused, if
a declaration of such emergency is made in accordance with the provisions of section
3.04.080 G., unless the Stayton City Council requires otherwise.

3.04.120 CANCELLATION, REJECTION, DELAY OF INVITATIONS FOR BIDS
OR REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS

The following provisions apply to all contracts administered under this Chapter:

A. Any solicitation or procurement described in a solicitation may be cancelled, or any or all
bids or proposals may be rejected in whole or in part, when the cancellation or rejection
is in the best interest of the City as determined by the Stayton City Council, City
AdministratorManager, Purchasing Manager, or Solicitation Agent. The reasons for the
cancellation or rejection must be made part of the solicitation file. The City of Stayton,
City AdministratorManager, Purchasing Manager, or Solicitation Agent are not liable to
any bidder or proposer for any loss or expense caused by or resulting from the

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 21 of 23



36

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE
cancellation or rejection of a solicitation, bid, proposal or award.

Any solicitation or procurement described in a solicitation may be delayed or suspended
when the delay or suspension is in the best interest of the City as determined by the
Stayton City Council, City AdministraterManager, Purchasing Manager, or Solicitation
Agent. The reasons for the delay or suspension must be made part of the solicitation file.
The City of Stayton, City AdministratorManager, Purchasing Manager, or Solicitation
Agent are not liable to any bidder or proposer for any loss or expense caused by or
resulting from the delay or suspension of a solicitation, bid, proposal or award.

3.04.130 ELECTRONIC ADVERTISEMENT OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT

CONTRACTS

In lieu of publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the Stayton area, the advertisement
for an invitation to bid or request for proposals for a contract involving a public improvement
may be published electronically by posting on the City of Stayton’s website, provided that the
following conditions are met:

A.

The placement of the advertisement is on a location within the website that is maintained
on a regular basis for the posting of information concerning solicitations for projects of
the type for which the invitation to bid or request for proposals is issued; and,

The Solicitation Agent determines that the use of electronic publication will be at least as
effective in encouraging meaningful competition as publication in a newspaper of general
circulation in the Stayton area and will provide costs savings for the City of Stayton, or
that the use of electronic publication will be more effective than publication in a
newspaper of general circulation in the City of Stayton metropolitan area in encouraging
meaningful competition.

3.04.140 APPEAL OF DEBARMENT OF PREQUALIFICATION DECISION

A.

Right to Hearing. Any person who has been debarred from competing for City of Stayton
contracts or for whom prequalification has been denied, revoked or revised, may appeal
the City of Stayton’s decision to the Stayton City Council as provided in this section
3.04.140.

Filing of Appeal. The person must file a written notice of appeal with the City of
Stayton’s City AdministratorManager within three business days after the prospective
contractor’s receipt of notice of the determination of debarment, or denial of
prequalification.

Notification of Stayton City Council. Immediately upon receipt of such notice of appeal,
the City AdministraterManager shall notify the Stayton City Council of the appeal.

Hearing. The procedure for appeal from a debarment or denial, revocation or revision of
prequalification shall be as follows:

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 22 of 23



37

TITLE 3. REVENUE AND FINANCE

1. Promptly upon receipt of notice of appeal, the City of Stayton shall notify the
appellant of the time and place of the hearing;

2. The Stayton City Council shall conduct the hearing and decide the appeal within
30 days after receiving notice of the appeal from the City AdministraterManager;
and,

3. At the hearing, the Stayton City Council shall consider de novo the notice of
debarment, or the notice of denial, revocation or revision of prequalification, the
standards of responsibility upon which the decision on prequalification was based,
or the reasons listed for debarment, and any evidence provided by the parties.

. Decision. The Stayton City Council shall set forth in writing the reasons for the decision.

. Costs. The Stayton City Council may allocate the Stayton City Council's costs for the
hearing between the appellant and the City of Stayton. The allocation shall be based
upon facts found by the Stayton City Council and stated in the Stayton City Council's
decision that, in the Stayton City Council’s opinion, warrant such allocation of costs. If
the Stayton City Council does not allocate costs, the costs shall be paid as by the
appellant, if the administrative action/decision is upheld, or by the City of Stayton, if the
same decision is overturned.

. Judicial Review. The decision of the Stayton City Council may be reviewed only upon a
petition in the Marion County Circuit Court filed within 15 days after the date of the
Stayton City Council’s written decision, as stated in the minutes of the meeting in which
the decision was rendered. (Ord. 877, section 1, March 21, 2005)

3.04 Stayton Public Contracting Code

Revised September2043December 2024
Page 23 of 23



	24 1202 - December 2 2024 City Council Meeting Agenda
	24 1118 Work Session Minutes
	24 1118 Regular Session Minutes
	Ordinance 1070 - Staff Report_Track Changes
	Ordinance 1070 - Adopting Biennial Budgets
	Ordinance 1071 - Staff Report
	Ordinance 1071 - Amending SMC 3.04.080
	Exhibit A - Chapter 3.04 Public Contracts



